
BUFFALO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
BUFFALO COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 23, 2025 
 
 The Buffalo County Board of Commissioners and the Buffalo County Board of Equalization met on Tuesday, December 23, 2025 

at 9:00 A.M. and 9:30 A.M. Chairperson Morrow called the meeting to order and led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The 

following Board members responded to roll call: Timothy Higgins, Ivan Klein, Myron Kouba, Ronald Loeffelholz, Bill Maendele and 

Sherry Morrow. Absent: Daniel Lynch. A copy of the acknowledgment and receipt of notice and agenda by the Board of Commissioners 

is attached to these minutes. Public notice of this meeting was published/posted in the Kearney Hub, on the Buffalo County website, and 

the bulletin boards located outside the County Clerk’s office and County Board Room on December 18, 2025. Chairperson Morrow 

announced that in accordance with Section 84-1412 of the Nebraska Revised Statutes, a current copy of the Open Meetings Act is 

available for review and posted at the back of the Board Room. County Clerk Heather Christensen took all proceedings hereinafter 

shown; while the convened meeting was open to the public. Deputy County Attorney Andrew Hoffmeister and Deputy County Attorney 

Josiah Davis were present.  

 Moved by Higgins and seconded by Kouba to approve the December 9, 2025 Board meeting minutes. Upon roll call vote, the 

following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Kouba, Klein, Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared 

carried.  

 Vice- Chairperson Maendele read into the record Employee Recognitions for the following County Employees: Fidencio Garcia 

Rodriguez for 1 Year of service, Eric Archuleta for 1 Year of service, Audrey Harris for 5 Years of service, Nick Alexander for 20 Years 

of service and Ted Huber for 30 Years of service. 

 Moved by Higgins and seconded by Loeffelholz to ratify the following December 12, 2025 payroll claims processed by the 

County Clerk. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Loeffelholz, Kouba, Klein, Maendele and 

Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 
DECEMBER 12, 2025 PAYROLL 

GENERAL FUND     
 NET PAYROLL        405,392.89  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS          1,353.44  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET        71,950.86  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS      174,065.50  
 DAWSON CO COURT  E   GARNISHMENT             302.13  
 EMPOWER ANNUITY INS   R   DEFERRED COMP          1,075.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS          7,320.72  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES      140,373.31  
 KEARNEY UNITED WAY   E   DONATIONS               67.42  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS          1,127.07  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY             310.02  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL          4,293.09  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP          3,257.00  
 NE CHILD SUPPORT   E   CHILD SUPPORT             876.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES        21,978.25  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE           1,242.98  
 ROAD FUND     
 NET PAYROLL          74,378.45  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS             862.19  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET        11,530.88  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS          4,403.00  
 FAMILY SUPPORT REGISTRY   E   GARNISHMENT               75.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS             842.49  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES        22,073.82  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS             198.96  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY             104.80  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL              984.44  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP             272.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES          3,290.57  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE              304.52  
 WEED FUND     
 NET PAYROLL            5,979.05  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET             940.35  



 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS             346.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS               33.33  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES          1,883.52  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY                 4.18  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL                60.36  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES             281.93  

 

 Moved by Klein and seconded by Higgins to approve the following December 2025 vendor claims submitted by the County Clerk 

and to exclude claim number 2512118 in the amount of $92.63 for further review. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members 

voted "Aye": Klein, Higgins, Kouba, Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

GENERAL FUND    
ADAMS CO SHERIFF E FEES             37.00  
ADVANCED CORRECTIONAL HEALTHCARE MC MEDICAL      20,877.42  
AG LAND ATV  S SVC        2,234.22  
AIRDATA UAV E SUBSCRIPTION        2,240.00  
LYNNE M. ALBIN S LEGAL           240.70  
ALL CITY GARAGE DOOR  EQ EQUIPMENT           505.00  
ALL SAFE INDUSTRIES SU SUPPLIES        3,076.76  
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SU SUPPLIES        3,511.50  
AMERICAN ELECTRIC COMPANY SU SUPPLIES           352.28  
MANDI J AMY RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
APCO INTERNATIONAL D DUES        1,012.00  
APPLE MARKET SU SUPPLIES             49.46  
NATHAN AREHART RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
JEN ARROWWOOD E FEES             20.00  
AT&T MOBILITY U PHONE SVC        3,391.52  
ATS S SVC           454.14  
BLACK HILLS ENERGY U UTILITY           274.47  
DREW BOHL RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
BOMGAARS SUPPLY EQ EQUIP             36.99  
BOSSELMAN ENERGY F PROPANE           288.76  
BOYS TOWN S YOUTH SVC           589.06  
SCOTT BRADY RE REIMBURSE             12.60  
NATHAN BRECHT RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
D. BRANDON BRINEGAR RE REIMBURSE           143.88  
STANLEY BRODINE RE REIMBURSE             15.26  
BRUNER FRANK SCHUMACHER S LEGAL      23,790.97  
BUFFALO CO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RE REIMBURSE             15.00  
BUFFALO CO COMMUNITY PARTNERS S YOUTH SVC           280.27  
BUFFALO CO ATTORNEY E EXPENSE             22.00  
BUFFALO CO COURT E FEES        3,240.35  
BUFFALO CO PUBLIC DEFENDER E EXPENSES           382.00  
BUFFALO CO SHERIFF E EXPENSE        1,999.83  
LOGAN BUHR E FEES           199.20  
BUILDERS WAREHOUSE  SU SUPPLIES           106.76  
CANON U.S.A. S MAINT           230.97  
CAPITAL CITY TRANSFER SERVICE E TRANSPORT        4,540.60  
MICHAEL D CARPER S LEGAL           650.00  
CENTURY LUMBER CENTER SU SUPPLIES             35.19  
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS U TELE SVC           749.95  
CHEMSEARCHFE S SVC           957.30  
JENNIFER CHURCH RE REIMBURSE             99.60  
CITY OF KEARNEY U UTILITIES        4,430.04  
CITY OF KEARNEY AP BUDGET    390,611.72  
CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT E COURT COSTS        2,429.00  
CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT E FEES           391.29  
CLEVENGER PROPANE CO F FUEL        3,673.00  
CLIPPER PUBLISHING S PRINTING             73.50  
COCHRAN LAW PC S LEGAL        4,204.99  
KATHARINE COLLINS RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
COLUMN SOFTWARE PBC A PUBLICATION           797.59  
COMFY BOWL RT RENTAL           310.00  
COMPASS FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES S FAMILY SVC           412.50  



COMPSYCH CORPORATION MC HEALTH        1,882.32  
CONSOLIDATED CONCRETE CO. C CONCRETE        2,614.57  
CONSTRUCTION RENTAL EQ EQUIPMENT           296.75  
COPYCAT PRINTING CENTER SU SUPPLIES           445.90  
COUNTRY PARTNERS COOPERATIVE U UTILITIES           808.50  
CULLIGAN OF KEARNEY S SVC           508.50  
WENDY C CUTTING E TRANSCRIPT             88.75  
DAN'S SANITATION S SVC             22.25  
DENNISE DANIELS RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
HEIDI DARBY RE REIMBURSE             49.99  
DAS ST ACCOUNTING S SVC           150.00  
DAS STATE ACCTNG-CENTRAL FINANCE S NETWORK SVC        1,536.00  
DATASHIELD CORPORATION S SVC             59.46  
JOSIAH DAVIS RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
LYDIA DAVIS RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
DAWSON CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE E FEES             88.42  
DAWSON PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT U UTILITIES        4,174.27  
DENT POPPER S REPAIR           375.00  
DIAMOND DRUGS MC MEDICAL        6,766.12  
DIER, OSBORN & COX, P.C., L.L.O. S LEGAL        1,430.00  
DOMINION REAL ESTATE KEARNEY RT RENT           290.00  
DOUGLAS CO SHERIFF E FEES             45.84  
DOWHY TOWING & RECOVERY S SVC           250.00  
BRANDON DUGAN LAW S LEGAL        2,160.00  
EAKES OFFICE SOLUTIONS SU SUPPLIES        7,813.01  
SHAWN EATHERTON RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
EGAN SUPPLY COMPANY SU SUPPLIES        2,183.84  
ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS S SVC           514.80  
ENTERPRISE ELECTRIC SU SUPPLIES           848.36  
EUSTIS BODY SHOP S REPAIR           489.91  
PAUL FARRELL RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
FATHER FLANAGAN'S BOYS'HOME S JUV SVC      11,729.02  
FRESHWORKS E SOFTWARE        8,760.46  
FRITSON PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES S SVC        3,200.00  
TAMARA FRIZANE RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
FRONTIER IT IT        4,167.89  
FYE LAW OFFICE S LEGAL      13,051.43  
GARCIA CLINICAL LABORATORY MC MEDICAL             98.00  
GARRETT TIRES & TREADS S REPAIRS             42.50  
GARY MICHAELS CLOTHIERS S REPAIRS           373.00  
GIBBON FIRE DEPARTMENT S SVC           100.00  
GRAND KUBOTA EQ EQUIPMENT        4,544.50  
GRAY LAW FIRM S LEGAL           480.00  
GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS LLC E INTERNET        1,207.25  
HALL CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE E FEES             41.36  
ANDREW W HOFFMEISTER RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
HOLIDAY INN - KEARNEY NE E EXPENSE        5,428.87  
HOMETOWN LEASING EQ PRINTER LEASE        5,916.02  
HORNER, LIESKE, MCBRIDE & KUHL E CREMATION        1,625.00  
MELISSA HOSTETLER E FEES             76.00  
LISA R HUERTA RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
IHS PHARMACY MC MEDICAL           238.96  
ERIC INGEBRETSEN RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
ISAAC CONSTRUCTION C CONSTRUCTION        2,200.00  
J & A SPECIALTIES SU SUPPLIES        1,700.99  
JACK'S UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT EQ EQUIPMENT           333.89  
JACOBSEN ORR LAW FIRM S LEGAL      38,446.65  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL S REPAIRS           240.80  
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY SU SUPPLIES           890.90  
JUSTICE WORKS LLC E SUBSCRIPTION           122.00  
KEARNEY CRETE & BLOCK CO SU SUPPLIES           230.94  
KEARNEY HOUSING AGENCY RT RENT           290.00  
KEARNEY TOWING & REPAIR CENTER INC S SVC           300.00  
KEARNEY WINNELSON CO EQ EQUIPMENT           320.00  



WILLIE KEEP RE REIMBURSE             23.80  
HANNAH KEMPH E FEES             49.40  
NICK KILLOUGH RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
KLEIN BREWSTER BRANDT & MESSERSMITH S LEGAL      25,956.00  
JEFFREY C KNAPP S LEGAL           961.75  
DOUG KRAMER RE REIMBURSE           150.00  
TIM KREUTZER RE REIMBURSE             11.20  
KRONOS S SVC        1,398.87  
LARSEN ELECTRIC S REPAIR           128.86  
DR MICHAEL LAWSON E MH BOARD           100.00  
LIESKE, LIESKE & ENSZ, PC LLO S LEGAL        2,871.48  
LMN GRAPHICS S SVC        1,050.00  
STEPHEN G LOWE E MH BOARD        1,625.00  
MAGNET FORENSICS E SUBSCRIPTION        6,720.00  
JOHN MARSH RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
LYNN MARTIN RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
MASTERS TRUE VALUE SU SUPPLIES             47.23  
SHARON MAULER E MH BOARD           100.00  
JENNIFER R MCCARTER REPORTING E TRANSCRIPT           910.95  
MCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL SU SUPPLIES           220.02  
MENARDS SU SUPPLIES        1,090.06  
MICROFILM IMAGING SYSTEMS S SVC           730.00  
MID NE AGGREGATE SU SUPPLIES      10,964.92  
MID STATE ENGINEERING & TESTING S SVC        5,394.00  
MIDWEST CONNECT S MAIL SVC      10,033.36  
MIDWEST PETROLEUM EQUIPMENT S SVC           702.75  
MIPS INC. S SUPPORT        6,128.82  
MIRROR IMAGE CAR WASH S SVC           327.28  
MOLLY BOMBERGER COUNSELING SERVICES S SVC        2,139.00  
MOONLIGHT CUSTOM SCREENPRINT S SVC           115.50  
KOLTON MORSE RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
ALICIA MULLER E FEES           280.40  
NACO E REGISTRATION           160.00  
NAPA AUTO PARTS SU SUPPLIES        1,254.72  
NE ARBORIST ASSOCIATION D MEMBERSHIP             75.00  
NE CENTRAL TELEPHONE CO U TELE SVC           213.65  
NE FLOODPLAIN & STORMWATER D MEMBERSHIP             35.00  
NE GENERATOR SERVICE LLC S REPAIR           814.00  
NE HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES S PT SVCS        1,004.54  
NE PUBLIC POWER DIST U UTILITIES           318.00  
NE PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT U UTILITIES      15,358.73  
NE STATE FIRE MARSHAL S SVC           135.00  
NE INTERACTIVE LLC E EXPENSES             83.00  
OPTK NETWORKS U TELE SVC        1,253.24  
NEKE VALLEY MHP RT RENT           410.00  
ROBERT NELSON RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
NE EMERGENCY SERVICE D DUES           255.00  
NEW WEST SPORTS MEDICINE MC MEDICAL           228.38  
NMC, INC. RT RENTAL        4,650.00  
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY U UTILITES        4,212.42  
NP REALTY RT RENT           290.00  
O'BRIEN STRAATMANN REDINGER FUNERAL E TRANSPORT           600.00  
BRADLEY KENT OLSON RT RENT           290.00  
OWENS EDUCATIONAL SERVICES S YOUTH SVCS        2,869.60  
PARKER GROSSART BAHENSKY BEUCKE S LEGAL           100.00  
GRANT M. PASCHKE S LEGAL           285.00  
PEPPERBALL E TRAINING           650.00  
PHYSICIANS LABORATORY P.C. MC MEDICAL        7,368.50  
PLAINS INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC RT RENT           740.00  
PLATTE VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS S SVC           560.58  
PLATTE VALLEY DENTAL CLINIC MC MEDICAL           865.00  
PLUMBING & HEATING WHOLESALE S REPAIRS             15.48  
PRAIRIE VIEW APARTMENTS RT RENT           370.00  
QUADIENT LEASING USA EQ LEASE           214.53  



QUILL CORPORATION SU SUPPLIES           219.10  
KANE M RAMSEY RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
RAVENNA REDI MIX C CONCRETE        1,201.25  
REBECCA RILEY RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
SANDI RODEMAN E FEES             80.20  
JOSE RODRIGUEZ RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
BRENDA ROHRICH RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
RUDOLPH LAW  S LEGAL           360.00  
JEREMY SEDLACEK RE REIMBURSE               3.50  
RICHARD SERR RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
JANICE SHERMAN S SVC           500.00  
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SU SUPPLIES           154.53  
SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP E SOFTWARE      13,393.00  
MARTI SLEISTER RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
TRENTON SNOW RE REIMBURSE           279.00  
TRENTON SNOW, LLC RT RENTAL        1,000.00  
CHERYL STABENOW RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
STAMM ROMERO & ASSOC, P.C., L.L.O. S LEGAL      13,283.60  
THOMAS S STEWART S LEGAL        2,356.93  
STONERIDGE APARTMENTS RT RENT           461.00  
SCOTT STUBBLEFIELD RE REIMBURSE             26.60  
SUMMIT FOOD SERVICE E FOOD SVC      35,532.54  
SWENEY GROUP  S SVC        4,613.10  
MICHAEL J SYNEK S LEGAL        2,141.02  
THE LAWN BUILDERS S SVC        6,824.04  
THE LOCKMOBILE EQ KEYS             29.25  
THOMSON REUTERS - WEST E SUBSCRIPTION        4,636.06  
THOMSON REUTERS - WEST E SUBSCRIPTION           654.15  
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST E SUBSCRIPTION        1,075.10  
THOMSON REUTERS - WEST E SUBSCRIPTION           869.95  
TK ELEVATOR CORPORATION S MAINTENANCE           512.70  
TURNER BODY SHOP OF KEARNEY S REPAIR             79.95  
REBECCA TVRDIK ANDERSON S LEGAL        7,700.00  
TYE & ROWLING, PC S LEGAL           530.00  
U S POSTMASTER E FEES           436.00  
U S POSTMASTER S MAIL SVC           382.00  
U.S. BANK E EXPENSES      16,458.02  
U.S. BANK E EXPENSES           902.99  
MARC VACEK RE REIMBURSE             41.30  
TIM VANCE RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
VERIZON U TELE SVC           962.18  
VERIZON WIRELESS U TELE SVC           679.33  
VILLAGE OF MILLER U UTILITIES             25.00  
VILLAGE UNIFORM S SVC           200.80  
THE WALDINGER CORPORATION S SVC      16,913.01  
LAURYN WALKER E FEES           111.00  
WELLS FARGO BANKS ACCT ANALYSIS E FEES             69.81  
WELLS FARGO E EXPENSES           701.95  
WELLS FARGO E EXPENSES           106.76  
WELLS FARGO E EXPENSES        1,156.11  
WELLS FARGO E EXPENSES           301.45  
AARON WENTZ RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
TENA WIDENER-BUSCH E FEES             88.60  
WILKE'S TRUE VALUE SU SUPPLIES             89.96  
MELISSA L WILLIS RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
LOYE WOLFE RE REIMBURSE             46.20  
WPCI S SVC           124.00  
YELLOW ROBE CONSULTING S SVC        1,800.00  
MELANIE R YOUNG RE REIMBURSE             45.00  
ROAD/ HWY DEPT    
AUSSIE HYDRAULICS S REPAIRS           986.40  
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY/AUTO VALUE PART S REPAIRS        2,548.48  
BARCO MUNCIPAL PRODUCTS SU SUPPLIES           300.00  
BOSSELMAN ENERGY F FUEL             64.57  



BUFFALO OUTDOOR POWER S REPAIRS           569.58  
ERIC HJORT E REGISTRATION             33.50  
CFP-C-T F FUEL             43.05  
COMFY BOWL RT RENTAL           105.00  
CONSTRUCTION RENTAL S REPAIRS           950.00  
CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE S REPAIRS           731.91  
CURLY'S RADIATOR SERVICE S REPAIRS           847.00  
EAKES OFFICE SOLUTIONS SU SUPPLIES             43.10  
ED BROADFOOT & SONS SAND & GRAVEL G GRAVEL      90,101.03  
FARM PLAN S REPAIRS        1,470.31  
FARMERS CO-OP ASSOCIATION F FUEL           101.00  
FASTENAL COMPANY S REPAIRS           449.74  
FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER S REPAIRS        4,029.42  
FRIESEN CHEVROLET  S REPAIRS        1,286.96  
GARRETT TIRES & TREADS S REPAIRS      10,958.65  
GENERAL EXCAVATING C CONCRETE      10,862.68  
GRAHAM TIRE CO S REPAIRS           821.84  
HANSEN INTERNATIONAL TRUCK S REPAIRS           457.86  
JIM HAWK TRUCK TRAILERS S REPAIRS           469.95  
KEARNEY EQUIPMENT S REPAIRS           823.66  
KIMBALL MIDWEST SU SUPPLIES           796.70  
MARLATT PRECISION S REPAIRS           175.68  
MATHESON TRI-GAS S REPAIRS           930.59  
MENARDS  EQ TOOLS             27.83  
MID NE AGGREGATE INC G GRAVEL        6,725.32  
MIDWEST SERVICE & SALES CO SU SUPPLIES      11,660.00  
MILLER & ASSOCIATES S SVC        7,582.50  
NAPA AUTO PARTS S PARTS             60.34  
NMC, INC. S REPAIRS      77,213.80  
NOVUS WINDSHIELD REPAIR S SVC             65.00  
OAK CREEK ENGINEERING S ENGINEERING      24,473.40  
OLSSON S SVC        1,446.00  
PAULSEN G GRAVEL      44,015.82  
POWERPLAN-MURPHY TRACTOR S REPAIRS        7,814.62  
TRUCK CENTER COMPANIES S REPAIRS           986.24  
U.S. BANK E EXPENSES        2,808.28  
WILKE'S TRUE VALUE E EXPENSES             42.38  
WINZER SU SUPPLIES        1,551.17  
VISITOR'S PROMOTION    
KEARNEY VISITOR'S BUREAU E EXPENSES      86,605.00  
VISITOR'S IMPROVEMENT    
KEARNEY VISITOR'S BUREAU E EXPENSES      86,605.00  
DEEDS PRESERVATION & MODERNIZATION    
MIPS INC. S SUPPORT           588.38  
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    
BCBS HEALTH CLAIM EXPENSE MC HEALTH    211,893.54  
HM LIFE MELLON GLOBAL CASH MGNT MC HEALTH      70,294.68  
VETERAN'S RELIEF    
CO VETERANS AID FUND E EXPENSES        3,403.60  
DRUG FORFEITURES    
BUFFALO CO CLERK RE REIMBURSE           720.00  
KENO LOTTERY    
BUFFALO CO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RE REIMBURSE           449.61  
WEED DISTRICT FUND    
MENARDS  SU SUPPLIES             39.98  
PLATTE VALLEY WEED MANAGEMENT AREA E EXPENSES        8,000.00  
U.S. BANK E EXPENSES           185.62  
911 EMERGENCY SERVICE    
CENTURYLINK U PHONE SVC        1,841.12  
FIBER PLATFORM S SVC           255.90  
FRONTIER U PHONE SVC           936.79  
GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS  U PHONE SVC           211.53  
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES U TELE SVC           108.31  
NE CENTRAL TELEPHONE CO U TELE SVC           109.99  



PLATTE VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS S MAINT        1,417.67  
STANCIL CORPORATION S MAINT        2,894.00  

 

 

County Attorney Shawn Eatherton arrived at 9:07 P.M. 

 Moved by Higgins and seconded by Kouba to approve the addition of pledged collateral in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for the 

Buffalo County Treasurer at Bruning Bank. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Kouba, Klein, 

Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

 Moved by Higgins and seconded by Kouba to approve the addition of pledged collateral in the amount of $35,598.56 for the 

Buffalo County Treasurer at Firstier Bank. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Kouba, Klein, 

Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

 Moved by Higgins and seconded by Kouba to approve the release of pledged collateral in the amount of $29,925.30 for the 

Buffalo County Treasurer at Firstier Bank. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Kouba, Klein, 

Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

 After discussion, it was determined that the Funds transfer agenda item was not necessary this month. 

 Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Klein to acknowledge receipt of the November 2025 Community Action Partnership of 

Mid-Nebraska RYDE Report. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Loeffelholz, Klein, Higgins, Maendele and 

Morrow. Abstain: Kouba. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

 Moved by Maendele and seconded by Higgins to approve following Resolution 2025-71 setting all of the Elected Officials 

salaries for the years 2027-2031.  Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Maendele, Higgins, Kouba, Klein, 

Loeffelholz and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

RESOLUTION 2025-71 
WHEREAS, according to Section 23-1114, Revised Statutes of Nebraska, the salaries of Elected Officials of the County shall be fixed by 

the County Board prior to January 15 of the year in which a general election will be held for the respective offices, and   

WHEREAS, said 2026 Primary Election will be held on May 12, 2026. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Buffalo County Board of Commissioners that the following salaries be established for 

Elected Officials for Buffalo County for the years beginning January 1, 2027 through December 31, 2030, to wit:   

The annual salary for the offices of County Clerk, Register of Deeds, County Treasurer, County Assessor, and Clerk of District 

Court will be established at $100,000.00 for the calendar year of 2027, $104,000.00 for calendar year 2028, $108,160.00 for calendar year 

2029 and $112,486.00 for calendar year 2030.   

 The annual salary for the office of County Sheriff will be established at $160,000.00 for the calendar year of 2027, $166,400.00 for 

calendar year 2028, $173,056.00 for calendar year 2029 and $179,979.00 for calendar year 2030 provided the Sheriff retains charge and 

custody of the jail.  If the County Sheriff does not retain charge and custody of the jail, the annual salary will be established at $128,000.00 

for the calendar year of 2027, $133,120.00 for the calendar year of 2028, $138,444.80 for the calendar year of 2029, and $143,983.20 for 

the calendar year of 2030. 

 The annual salary for the office of County Attorney will be established at $165,000.00 for the calendar year of 2027, $171,600.00 

for calendar year 2028, $178,464.00 for calendar year 2029, and $185,603.00 for calendar year 2030. 

 The annual salary for the office of County Surveyor will be established at $42,550.00 for calendar year 2027, $44,252.00 for 

calendar year 2028, $46,020.00 for calendar year 2029, and $47,860.00 for calendar year 2030.  County Surveyor is also entitled to all fees.   

 The annual salary for the office of Public Defender will be established at $148,500.00 for calendar year 2027, $154,440.00 for 

calendar year 2028, $160,618.00 for calendar year 2029, and $167,043.00 for calendar year 2030. 

 The annual salary for the office of County Board Chair will be established at $47,879.00 for calendar year 2027 and 2028.  The 

annual salary for 2029 and 2030 shall be established at $47,879.00, plus an increase based on the cumulative Consumer Price Index (CPI-

U) as established by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor in December 2027 and December 2028, plus 1%. 

 The annual salary for the office of County Commissioner will be established at $44,980.00 for calendar year 2027 and 2028.  The 

annual salary for 2029 and 2030 shall be established at $44,980.00, plus an increase based on the cumulative Consumer Price Index (CPI-

U) as established by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor in December 2027 and December 2028, plus 1%. 

 That in addition to the above salary, each official shall receive and be a member of the same benefit package as offered to all County 

employees.   

 



Chairperson Morrow reviewed the following correspondence. Nebraska Department of Environment and Energy sent a letter 

stating that they hereby issue coverage under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations, Confining Cattle effective April 1, 2026 and will expire March 31, 2031 for JKS Farms 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation. Nebraska Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (NIRMA) sent a holiday/calendar 

card for the new year. Buffalo County Community Partners sent a letter giving the option to send donation to strengthen the well-being of 

the community. Wilkins Architecture Design Planning sent a Christmas card to the Board. Black Hills Energy sent a booklet titled Local 

Leaders and Public Workers, Permitting, and Planning Officials. Chairperson Morrow called on each Board member present for 

committee reports and recommendations.  

ZONING 
 Zoning Administrator Dennise Daniels and Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister were present for the following Zoning agenda 

items.  
 After discussion it was moved by Maendele and seconded by Loeffelholz to deny the Application for Preliminary Subdivision for 

“Golfside #5 Subdivision”, as well as an Application for Vacation of Plat, for Golfside Estates, Lots 23-24 and Lots 26-31, also known as 

a tract of land being part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 36, Township 11 North, Range 16 West of the 6th P.M., Buffalo County, 

Nebraska filed by Joshua Gilbertson, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Scott R. Phillips, Successor Co-Trustee of the Lee Nell Phillips 

Revocable Trust Dated December 4, 1990 and Successor Co-Trustee of the Ercil D. Phillips Family Trust also known as The Phillips 

Family Trust, Gary D. Phillips, Successor Co-Trustee of the Lee Nell Phillips Trust Revocable Trust Dated December 4, 1990 and 

Successor Co-Trustee of the Ercil D. Phillips Family Trust also known as The Phillips Family Trust, Douglas E. Welliver, Christine A. 

Welliver, and Golfside Estates Subdivision Homeowners Association, Inc. and further, recommended if the applicants wish to move 

forward with proposed, noncompliant plat, then the request will need to be submitted, in writing, to The Buffalo County Board of 

Adjustment. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Maendele, Loeffelholz, Higgins, Kouba, Klein and Morrow. 

Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried.   

Chairperson Morrow opened the public hearing at 9:17 A.M. for a Proposed Zoning Fee Revisions, No one addressed the Board. 

Chairperson Morrow closed the hearing at 9:20 A.M.  Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Klein to approve the Proposed Zoning Fee 

Revisions as presented and a copy will be on file in the Clerk’s office. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": 

Loeffelholz, Klein, Higgins, Kouba, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 County Assessor Roy Meusch presented an office update to the Board.  

 Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Kouba to recess the regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 9:32 A.M. and 

reconvene as a Board of Equalization. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Loeffelholz, Kouba, Higgins, 

Klein, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
Chairperson Morrow called the Board of Equalization to order in open session. County Treasurer Brenda Rohrich was present. 

Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Higgins to approve the Motor Vehicle Tax Exemption renewal as indicated on the 

application by County Treasurer Rohrich for the Christian Student Fellowship for a 2018 Ford Transit 350 Van. Upon roll call vote, the 

following Board members voted "Aye": Loeffelholz, Higgins, Kouba, Klein, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared 

carried. 

Moved by Kouba and seconded by Higgins to approve the Motor Vehicle Tax Exemption renewal as indicated on the application 

by County Treasurer Rohrich for Evangelical Lutheran Good Samaritan for a 2017 Ford Fusion 4 Door Sedan. Upon roll call vote, the 

following Board members voted "Aye": Kouba, Higgins, Klein, Loeffelholz, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared 

carried. 

 Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Kouba to approve the Motor Vehicle Tax Exemption renewal as indicated on the 

application by County Treasurer Rohrich for the Good Samaritan Prairie View Gardens for a 2008 Chevrolet Silverado K1500, a 2010 

Ford Cutaway Van E450, a 2014 Buck Dandy Flatbed Trailer and a 2019 Dodge Grand Caravan. Upon roll call vote, the following 

Board members voted "Aye": Loeffelholz, Kouba, Higgins, Klein, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

Moved by Higgins and seconded by Loeffelholz to approve the Motor Vehicle Tax Exemption renewal as indicated on the 

application by County Treasurer Rohrich for Press On Ministries for a 1986 Chevy 42 Passenger Bus, a 2000 Chevy Truck and a 2017 

KIA Sportage. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Higgins, Loeffelholz, Kouba, Klein, Maendele and 

Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 



Moved by Loeffelholz and seconded by Higgins to approve the Motor Vehicle Tax Exemption renewal as indicated on the 

application by County Treasurer Rohrich for Sonshine World Daycare for a 2010 Ford Econoline Van E350, a 2013 Ford Econoline Van 

and a 2015 Ford Transit Wagon. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Loeffelholz, Higgins, Kouba, Klein, 

Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

 Moved by Maendele and seconded by Kouba to adjourn the Board of Equalization and return to the regular meeting of the Board 

of Commissioners at 9:34 A.M. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Maendele, Kouba, Higgins, Klein, 

Loeffelholz and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

ROAD DEPARTMENT 
Highway Superintendent John Maul was present for the discussion on the purchase of Two New John Deere 770P Motor Graders 

through Source Well Pricing. Moved by Klein and seconded by Loeffelholz to approve the purchase of Two New John Deere 770P 

Motor Graders through Source Well Pricing. Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted "Aye": Klein, Loeffelholz, Higgins, 

Kouba, Maendele and Morrow. Absent: Lynch. Motion declared carried. 

FACILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Facilities Director Stephen Gaasch was present to discuss current projects in Buffalo County. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 Chairperson Morrow called for Citizen’s forum. No one addressed the Board. 

Chairperson Morrow asked if there was anything else to come before the Board at 9:42 A.M. before she declared the meeting 

adjourned sine die until the reorganization meeting on Tuesday, January 13, 2026 at 9:00 A.M. and instructed County Clerk to publish 

notice for the same according to Nebraska Law. 

  ATTEST: 

 
___________________________________             _________________________________   
Sherry L. Morrow, Chairperson      Heather A. Christensen   
Buffalo County Board of Commissioners         (SEAL)  Buffalo County Clerk 

 



DECEMBER 26, 2025 PAYROLL 
GENERAL FUND     
 NET PAYROLL         376,651.71  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS           1,353.44  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET         66,212.31  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS       171,895.50  
 DAWSON CO COURT  E   GARNISHMENT              302.13  
 EMPOWER ANNUITY INS   R   DEFERRED COMP           1,075.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS           6,594.90  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES       126,468.83  
 KEARNEY UNITED WAY   E   DONATIONS                67.42  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS           1,119.42  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY              320.63  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL           4,176.71  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP           3,257.00  
 NE CHILD SUPPORT   E   CHILD SUPPORT              876.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES         19,802.93  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE            1,200.37  
 ROAD FUND     
 NET PAYROLL           68,343.72  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS              862.19  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET         10,937.80  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS           4,403.00  
 FAMILY SUPPORT REGISTRY   E   GARNISHMENT                75.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS              842.49  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES         20,286.95  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS              199.05  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY              104.88  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL               984.44  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP              272.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES           3,052.05  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE               304.62  
 WEED FUND     
 NET PAYROLL             5,979.05  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET              940.35  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS              346.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS                33.33  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES           1,883.52  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY                  4.18  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL                 60.36  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES              281.93  

 



JANUARY 9, 2026 PAYROLL 
 

GENERAL FUND     
 NET PAYROLL         425,462.33  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS           1,403.49  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET         75,758.89  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS       182,679.00  
 DAWSON CO COURT  E   GARNISHMENT              302.13  
 EMPOWER ANNUITY INS   R   DEFERRED COMP           1,075.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS           7,889.36  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES       146,814.05  
 KEARNEY UNITED WAY   E   DONATIONS                45.00  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS           1,136.76  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY              316.30  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL           4,561.52  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP           3,282.00  
 NE CHILD SUPPORT   E   CHILD SUPPORT              876.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES         20,553.97  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE            1,257.00  
 ROAD FUND     
 NET PAYROLL           69,045.22  
 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE    I   PREMIUMS           1,056.88  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET         11,106.39  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS           4,864.00  
 FAMILY SUPPORT REGISTRY   E   GARNISHMENT                75.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS           1,117.46  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES         20,248.61  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   PREMIUMS              198.96  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY              113.20  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL            1,105.95  
 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT   R   DEFERRED COMP              272.50  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES           2,762.09  
 VISION SERVICE PLAN   E   EMPE VSP EYE               334.23  
 WEED FUND     
 NET PAYROLL             6,048.95  
 RETIREMENT PLANS AMERITAS   R   EMPE RET              952.19  
 BUFFALO CO TREASURER   I   PREMIUMS              423.00  
 FIRST CONCORD    E   FLEX FUNDS                33.33  
 FIRST NATIONAL BANK   T   FEDERAL TAXES           1,861.61  
 MADISON NATIONAL   I   LT DISABILITY                  4.18  
 METLIFE   E   DENTAL                 66.92  
 STATE OF NE   T   STATE TAXES              252.48  













 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE COUNTY OF BUFFALO, NEBRASKA 

 
IN THE MATTER OF THE THREE ) 
LARGEST POPULATION COUNTIES ) 
ADOPTING COMMON LEGISLATIVE ) RESOLUTION NO. 2026- 
PRIORITIES FOR THE NEBRASKA ) 
LEGISLATURE’S 2026 REGULAR  ) 
SESSION      ) 
 
WHEREAS, the Counties of Buffalo, Douglas, Hall, Lancaster, and Sarpy, Nebraska, 
(“Counties”) collectively represent the interests of over 1.2 million Nebraskans, constituting over 
62% of the population of the State of Nebraska; 

WHEREAS, the Counties deliver essential local governmental services mandated by the State of 
Nebraska (“State”) without State appropriations to support those services, including critical public 
health, mental health, and public safety services; 

WHEREAS, despite dramatically rising inflation, an historically competitive labor market, and 
exceptional population growth, the Counties’ Boards of County Commissioners (“County 
Boards”) have prudently managed their property tax levies while continuing to deliver the essential 
local governmental services that our growing communities want and deserve;   

WHEREAS, tax reform cannot be achieved at the expense of our Counties’ ability to deliver 
essential local governmental services that keep Nebraskans healthy and safe; and 

WHEREAS, the Counties, in addition to their individual interests and priorities in the Nebraska 
Legislature’s 2026 Regular Session, have come together on behalf of their collective residents to 
adopt common legislative priorities; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF BUFFALO, NEBRASKA, ALONGSIDE OUR 
COMMISSIONER COLLEAGUES OF THE COUNTIES OF BUFFALO, DOUGLAS, 
HALL, LANCASTER AND SARPY, NEBRASKA, that the County Boards hereby support the 
Legislature and the Governor’s efforts to promote the State’s health, security, and prosperity by 
addressing the following pressing issues that are of critical import to the Counties’ constituents: 

1. Property Tax Relief: Comprehensive property tax relief through thoughtful, 
systemic reform of tax requests, tax levies, and property valuation, is vital to the 
continued growth and vitality of the Counties.  The reform mechanisms contained in 
LB34 (Special Session 2024), as amended by LB647 AM1202 (2025) (incorporating 
portions of LB242(2025)), are critically important to the Counties’ ability to deliver 
essential local governmental services that keep Nebraskans healthy and safe, 
including but not limited to cap exemptions for: the county’s growth percentage; 
inflation as defined by SLCE; approved bonds; emergencies; and amounts budgeted 
for public safety as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. § 13-320, county attorneys, and public 
defenders.   



 

2 
 

 
2. Utilizing Inheritance Tax for Property Tax Relief:  The Counties currently utilize 

inheritance tax revenue as dollar-for-dollar property tax relief, supporting essential 
local governmental services that otherwise would be paid with property tax revenue.  
Elimination or reduction of inheritance tax revenues must be balanced by equal and 
sustainable replacement revenue streams to ensure that the Counties can responsibly 
manage property tax levies while continuing to deliver the critical health and safety 
services that make Nebraska a preeminent location for families and businesses. 
 

3. State Tax Shifts to the Counties:  The Counties’ property taxpayers collectively bear 
the burden of tens of millions of dollars in constantly escalating costs of State 
bureaucracy that the State has shifted to the Counties, paying for the salaries and 
benefits of State personnel and the costs of State office space, utilities, office equipment 
and computers.  These veiled State property tax levies serve only to conceal the true 
costs of State government and represent the hidden barrier to real and lasting relief to 
the Counties’ property taxpayers. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Boards hereby authorize the Counties’ 
advocacy teams to pursue the success of legislation consistent with the principles herein, 
throughout the Nebraska Legislature’s 2026 Regular Session. 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 13th DAY OF JANUARY, 2026 
 

BUFFALO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

_______________________________  ___________________________ 
Sherry Morrow     Bill Maendele 
 
________________________________  ____________________________ 
Tim Higgins      Ivan Klein 
 
________________________________  _____________________________ 
Myron Kouba      Ron Loeffelholz 
 
________________________________   
Dan Lynch      
 
 
________________________________ 
Shawn Eatherton, County Attorney 
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Christensen, County Clerk 



 

 
ZONING AGENDA ITEM #1 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2026 

AGENT: Bryan Brown, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Delores A. Keaschall, 
Trustee 

SUBJECT: Application for Administrative Subdivision, “Keaschall Administrative 
Subdivision” located in Part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast 
Quarter, of Section Sixteen (16), Township Eleven (11) North, Range 
Fourteen (14) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, 
Nebraska 

Discussion: 

According to Subdivision Regulations, Section 3.02 (Administrative Subdivision), when a tract 
of land 10.00 acres or less is split, the applicant(s) must file an Administrative Subdivision.   
 
The proposed subdivision, “Keaschall Administrative Subdivision”, is arranged with one lot, 
containing, approximately, 5.32 acres. The proposed subdivision is situated west of Maple Road 
and north of Grand Island Road. The affected Parcel ID is: 280123000. Zoning District: 
Agriculture (AG). 
 
No opposition was received regarding “Keaschall Administrative Subdivision”. 
 
Attachments: 
 

• Administrative Subdivision Application 
• Administrative Subdivision Survey 
• Administrative Subdivision Legal Description 
• Remnant Acres 
• Proof of Title 
• Locational/Zoning/Floodplain Aerial Map 

 

 

BUFFALO COUNTY ZONING & FLOODPLAIN 
Buffalo County Courthouse 
1512 Central Avenue 
PO Box 1270 
Kearney, NE  68848 
Phone: (308) 236-1998 
Fax: (308) 236-1870 
Email: zoning@buffalocounty.ne.gov 



 
ZONING AGENDA ITEM #2 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2026 

SUBJECT: Code amendments with renumbering as necessary, to The Buffalo County 
Zoning Regulations, Section 5.42, Agricultural – Residential 2 (AGR – 2) 
District, Permitted Principle Uses and Structures, regarding personal use 
solar energy systems on a lot comprised of 10.00 acres or more.  

Discussion: 
 
Add the following permitted principle use/structure to Buffalo County Zoning Regulations, 
Section 5.42, with renumbering necessary: 
 

• Personal Use Solar Energy System, when the system is situated on a lot comprised of 
10.00 acres or greater; 

 
On December 18, 2025, The Planning Commission recommended to forward the proposed code 
amendment, as shown above, favorably, on an 8-0 vote, with no abstentions and one absence. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Jeffs, Stubblefield, Chaney, 
Keep, Sedlacek, Kreutzer, Vacek and Brady. 
Voting “Nay”: None. 
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Wolfe.  
 
No opposition was received regarding the proposed code amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Planning  
& 

Zoning 
Commission 

Minutes 

December 18, 2025 



MINUTES OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
DECEMBER 18, 2025 

BUFFALO COUNTY COURTHOUSE  
7:00 P.M. 

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Kearney Hub, the 
designated method for giving notice, on December 4, 2025. A copy of the proof of publication is 
on file in the Zoning Administrator’s Office. Advance notice of the meeting was also given to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and availability of the Agenda was communicated in the 
advance notice. The Agenda is available for anyone wanting a copy. 

Chairperson Scott Brady opened the meeting at 7:03 P.M. on December 18, 2025.  

In Attendance: Marc Vacek, Joshua Chaney, Tammy Jeffs, Scott Stubblefield, Willie Keep, 
Jeremy Sedlacek, Tim Kreutzer, and Scott Brady. 

Absent was Loye Wolfe. 

Quorum has been met. 

Also attending were: Deputy County Attorney Andrew Hoffmeister, Deputy County Attorney 
Josiah Davis, and Zoning Administrator Dennise Daniels. There were few members of the public 
present. 

Chairperson Brady announced The Open Meetings Act and agendas were available if anyone 
wished to have one. 

The public forum was opened at 7:04 P.M.  No one spoke. The public forum closed at 7:04 P.M. 

Chairperson Brady announced the procedure and etiquette for the upcoming public hearings. 

Public Hearing. 5(a) 

Chairperson Brady opened the public hearing for Agenda Item 5(a) at 7:05 P.M., regarding the 
Application for Zoning Map Amendment, filed by Thomas R. Murphy and Cheryl Murphy, for 
property described as the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section Ten (10), Township 
Ten (10) North, Range Fifteen (15) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, 
Nebraska, to rezone approximately 80 Acres, more or less, from Agriculture (AG) to 
Agricultural – Residential (AGR – 1).  

Thomas Murphy and Cheryl Murphy, of 6111 Q Avenue Place, Kearney, stepped forward to 
present the project. Mr. Murphy explained that they wish to rezone the full 80 acres that they 
own to erect a house that is closer to their daughter’s residence. Mr. Murphy stated that the east 
half of the 80 acres would be used for their daughter to construct a residence and the west half 
would be used for their residence. He added that they would like to construct an additional 
residence for their elderly parents on their tract, as well. 



 

 

Mr. Murphy stated that he believed that with the existing residences in the Agricultural – 
Residential 1 (AGR – 1) District directly to the south, put too many houses in the same quarter 
section. He added that he believed those residences were calculated in the totality of the four 
residences per quarter section, that is required in the Agricultural (AG) District. 

Chairperson Brady inquired the number of residences that would be constructed and Mr. Murphy 
explained that there would be a total of three houses that they would like to construct, but there 
are more to the south. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister reviewed the zoning map with The Commission. 

Mr. Chaney asked if the entire 80 acres is rezoned to Agricultural – Residential 1 (AGR-1), 
could the entirety of the tract be subdivided into 3 acre lots. Deputy County Attorney 
Hoffmeister confirmed.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister also explained that the applicants would not have the 
ability to construct a “mother-in-law suite” in the Agricultural – Residential 1 (AGR-1) District 
as that use is not allowed. However, he continued, it could be allowed in the Agricultural – 
Residential (AGR-2) District by Special Use. He further explained that Agricultural Residential 
– 2 (AGR – 2) District rezoning could only be rezoned for tracts that abut other Agricultural 
Residential – 2 (AGR – 2) District tracts. He stated that the parents would need to have a 
separate tract and separate residence, as it states, now. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that there was an existing feedlot within a certain 
perimeter of the proposed rezone. He asked Zoning Administrator Daniels the distance from the 
proposed tract to the feedlot. Zoning Administrator Daniels stated that the tract is approximately 
2.02 miles away. 

Chairperson Brady asked if the applicants are aware of the Buffalo County Comprehensive Plan. 
Mr. Murphy stated that he reviewed it. Chairperson Brady stated that The Commission created 
the plan to ensure that development occurred where it was indicated in the Future Land Use 
Map. Chairperson Brady asked Zoning Administrator Daniels if the map had been provided to 
The Commission and Zoning Administrator Daniels explained that it was included in The 
Commission’s packets. She stated that the Future Land Use Map indicated that the tract should 
be zoned Agricultural (AG). 

Mr. Stubblefield asked if there was a road that abutted the proposed tract to be rezoned. Mr. 
Murphy indicated that 190th Road abutted the tract to the north and Sweetwater abutted to the 
west. 

Mr. Sedlacek asked where the access points would be located. Mr. Murphy stated that they 
would have two accesses on 190th Road and one will be off Sweetwater. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that the houses that are zoned Agricultural – 
Residential 1 (AGR-1) do not count towards the four houses per quarter section. He asked 
Zoning Administrator Daniels if there were other houses in that quarter section. Zoning 



 

Administrator Daniels stated that there were no other residences in that quarter section that were 
zoned Agricultural (AG).  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister advised The Commission that the 1,000 feet between 
houses regulation in the Agricultural (AG) District was removed during The Comprehensive 
Plan review.  

Vice-Chairperson Keep stated that if there are no other residences zoned Agricultural (AG) in 
that quarter section, then a rezoning was not necessary. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister 
confirmed. He added that the neighboring tracts could put up residences as well and clarified that 
only four houses could be constructed in the same quarter section in the Agricultural (AG) 
District. 

Vice-Chairperson Keep advised the applicants that they cannot subdivide a tract smaller than 
three acres. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister added that the three acres must be net of roads. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that there do not appear to be any residences in that 
quarter section to date. 

Zoning Administrator Daniels added that all construction in rural Buffalo County does still 
require an Application for Zoning Permit. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister agreed and 
asked about floodplain. Zoning Administrator Daniels stated that there are no regulatory 
floodplains on the proposed tract. Mr. Murphy stated that he understood. 

Chairperson Brady advised that this Commission has no interest in spot-zoning. 

Chairperson Brady asked if the applicant wished to retain ownership of the entire 80 acres and 
Mr. Murphy stated that they would retain the west half and sell the east half to their daughter.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that the applicants could withdraw their application 
and explore Agricultural (AG) Zoning options. He added the applicants will need to ensure there 
is one house on each parcel. 

Mr. Murphy stated that they wish to withdraw their application based on the Agricultural (AG) 
District Zoning meeting their needs for housing. After further review by this Commission, it was 
found that there were no other residences in that quarter section, zoned Agricultural (AG). 

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone wished to speak on the subject and no one spoke. 

Chairperson Brady closed the public hearing at 7:28 P.M. 
 
The Application for Change of Zoning was withdrawn, per the applicant, based on a review of 
the situation regarding density in the Agricultural (AG) District as newly revised.  
 
Chairperson Brady opened the public hearing for Agenda Item 5(b) at 7:29 P.M. regarding Code 
amendment to The Buffalo County Zoning Regulations, with renumbering as necessary, in the 
following section: Section 5.42, Agricultural – Residential 2 (AGR – 2) District, Permitted 
Principle Uses and Structures, regarding personal use solar energy systems on a lot comprised of 
10.00 acres or more.  



 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stepped forward to present the proposed code amendments. 
He testified that there have been recent requests for solar panels, less than 25 kW, in front yards 
situated on lots of 10 acres or more and it was discovered that the particular use was 
inadvertently left off as a principle permitted use. He stated that it would be beneficial to add that 
to our newly-revised code.  
 
Discussion occurred regarding how alternative energy sources were charged through Dawson 
Public Power. 
 
Chairperson Brady asked Zoning Administrator Daniels if the proposed code amendment was 
allowed in Agricultural – Residential (AGR-1) District. Zoning Administrator Daniels confirmed 
it was allowed. 
 
Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister advised The Commission that there are several 10+ acre 
tracts that are situated in the Agricultural – Residential 2 (AGR – 2) District. 
 
Discussion occurred regarding alternative energy sources and their impact in Nebraska. 
 
Chairperson Brady asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the proposed amendment 
and no one spoke.  
 
Chairperson Brady closed the public hearing at 7:43 P.M. 
 
Motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Keep, and seconded by Secretary Jeffs to recommend 
favorably the proposed code amendment, as presented, to the Buffalo County Board of 
Commissioners, as presented. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Jeffs, Stubblefield, Chaney, 
Keep, Sedlacek, Kreutzer, Vacek and Brady. 
Voting “Nay”: None. 
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Wolfe.  
 
Motion carried. 
 
Old Business 
 
Minutes 
 
Motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Keep and seconded by Mr. Sedlacek to approve the 
November 20, 2025 meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Jeffs, Stubblefield, Keep, 
Chaney, Sedlacek, Kreutzer, Vacek and Brady. 
Voting “Nay”: None. 
Abstain: None. 



 

Absent: Wolfe.  
 
Motion carried. 
 
New Business 
 
Report on Previous Hearings 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels reported that the fee revisions that were presented to The Planning 
Commission in November were scheduled to go in front of The Board of Commissioners on 
December 23, 2025. She stated that she would report back on that decision at the next meeting. 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels reviewed an extra-territorial jurisdictional boundary subdivision 
submitted by the city of Kearney. The Commission reviewed the proposed response and found 
the letter to be satisfactory. Zoning Administrator Daniels stated that the proposed letter would 
be put in the mail the next day.  
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels also reviewed a notice for public hearing from the County of 
Dawson. 
 
Next Meeting 
  
The next meeting is scheduled for January 15, 2026. Zoning Administrator Daniels stated that 
she received an Application for Special Use Permit for a wind turbine. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Chairperson Brady adjourned the meeting at 7:56 P.M. 
 
___________________________________   _____________________________
 Scott Brady, Chairperson     Tammy Jeffs, Secretary 

Buffalo County Planning Commission           Buffalo County Planning Commission 
 



Zoning 
Agenda 

 
 

Item #1 
 

 





LOT 1
183205± SF
4.21± AC

1.11± AC DEDICATED ROW
5.32± AC TOTAL

S0
0°

03
'2

3"
W

  7
91

.4
3'

(M
)

N89°51'22"W  376.14'(M)

L1

L2

N89°51'22"W  428.97'(M)
41.99'(M)

N
17

°5
1'

23
"E

  6
32

.2
8'

(M
)

N89°51'22"W  376.14'(M)

S0
0°

03
'2

3"
W

  7
91

.4
3'

(M
)

L5L4

S0
0°

03
'2

3"
W

  8
31

.4
9'

( M
)

L3

N
17

°5
1'

23
"E

  6
74

.2
7'

(M
)

40' RIGHT-OF-WAY
TO BE DEDICATED
WITH THIS PLAT

10' EASEMENT TO BE
DEDICATED ALONG FRONT,
REAR AND SIDE LOT LINES

40' RIGHT-OF-WAY
TO BE DEDICATED
WITH THIS PLAT

50' FRONTAGE
SETBACK

N89°51'22"W  2651.23'(M) 2649.9'(GLO)

S0
0°

03
'2

3"
W

  2
65

1.
08

'(M
) 2

65
0.

93
'(R

1)
 2

65
1.

12
'(R

2 )

SOUTHEAST QUARTER
 OF THE

 SOUTHEAST QUARTER
SECTION 16-T11N-R14W

(NOT A PART)

33' EXISTING
COUNTY ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY

GRAND ISLAND RD

M
A
P
L
E
 R

D

7'

LINE TABLE

SCALE: 1" = 100'

0' 100' 200'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON JANUARY 8th, 2026, I,  BRYAN ADAM BROWN, A NEBRASKA
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 852, DULY LICENSED UNDER THE LAND SURVEYOR'S
REGULATION ACT, DO HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE PERFORMED A SURVEY OF THE LAND
DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT; THAT SAID PLAT IS A TRUE DELINEATION OF SAID
SURVEY PERFORMED PERSONALLY OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION; THAT SAID SURVEY WAS
MADE WITH REFERENCE TO KNOWN AND RECORDED MONUMENTS MARKED AS SHOWN, AND TO
THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF IS TRUE, CORRECT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAND SURVEYOR'S REGULATION ACT IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY.

________________________________________________________
BRYAN ADAM BROWN, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NUMBER, PLS-852

LEGEND
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE

SECTION LINE

COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY

10' UTILITY EASEMENT LINE

FRONTAGE SETBACK LINE

M MEASURED DISTANCE

R1 RECORD DISTANCE HUMPHREY LS 224 SURVEY DATED 9/1999

R2 RECORD DISTANCE SNOW LS 626 SURVEY DATED 3/2012

GLO RECORD DISTANCE GENERAL LAND OFFICE SURVEY DATED 9/1866

SECTION CORNER

SET CORNER (5/8"x24" REBAR WITH PSC LS 852 UNLESS NOTED)

SECTION CORNER TIES
EAST 1/4 CORNER, SECTION 16 T11N R14W
FOUND BUFFALO COUNTY ALUMINUM CAP ±0.5' BELOW GRADE IN
NORTH/SOUTH COUNTY ROAD.
E 33.05' TO BROKEN CONCRETE WITNESS CORNER WITH IRON POST
SW 44.65' TO 5/8" REBAR (PROPERTY CORNER)
WSW 294.58' TO 5/8" REBAR (PROPERTY CORNER)

SOUTHEAST CORNER, SECTION 16 T11N R14W
FOUND 5/8" REBAR ±0.4' BELOW GRADE IN COUNTY ROAD INTERSECTION
SW 47.13' TO "X" NAILS IN POWER POLE
NW 49.20' TO "X" NAILS IN POWER POLE
SE 46.47' TO NEAR FACE OF CONC WITNESS CORNER
NW 56.61' TO 5/8" REBAR WITH PLASTIC SURVEY CAP

SOUTH 1/4 CORNER, SECTION 16 T11N R14W
FOUND 5/8" HAIRPIN REBAR ±1.0' BELOW GRADE IN EAST/WEST COUNTY ROAD
S 33.00' TO 5/8" REBAR
N 62.43' TO NEAR FACE OF PIVOT STOP
ENE 100.29' TO NAIL IN TOP OF CULVERT
ESE 93.26' TO NAIL IN TOP OF CULVERT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOCATED IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4 SE1/4) OF SECTION SIXTEEN (16),
TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE FOURTEEN (14) WEST OF THE 6th P.M. BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 16, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE ON AN ASSUMED
BEARING OF N89°51'22"W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER FOR A DISTANCE OF 428.97 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE N17°51'23"E
FOR A DISTANCE OF 674.27 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE N78°30'58"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 108.92 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE N02°56'05"E FOR A
DISTANCE OF 167.27 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE S89°56'37"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 107.73 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT IS ON THE EAST LINE OF
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE S00°03'23"W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 831.49 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID TRACT CONTAINS A CALCULATED AREA OF 231,739 SQUARE FEET OR 5.32 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF WHICH 48,534 SQUARE FEET OR 1.11
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ARE DEDICATED AS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH THIS PLAT.

KEASCHALL ADMINISTRATIVE SUBDIVISION
AN ADMINISTRATIVE SUBDIVISION BEING LOCATED IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4 SE1/4) OF SECTION SIXTEEN (16), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE

FOURTEEN (14) WEST OF THE SIXTH (6th) PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT DELORES A. KEASCHALL, TRUSTEE OF DELORES A. KEASCHALL TRUST BEING THE OWNER OF THE
LAND DESCRIBED HEREON, HAVE CAUSED SAME TO BE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED, PLATTED AND DESIGNATED AS "

", AN ADMINISTRATIVE SUBDIVISION BEING LOCATED IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4

SE1/4) OF SECTION SIXTEEN (16), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE FOURTEEN (14) WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA, AS
SHOWN ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT THEREOF AND HEREBY DEDICATE THE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY AS WELL AS ANY EASEMENTS, AS SHOWN
THEREON TO THE PUBLIC FOR THEIR USE FOREVER  AND THAT THE FOREGOING SUBDIVISION AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE
DESCRIPTION HEREON AS APPEARS ON THIS PLAT IS MADE WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES OF THE
UNDERSIGNED OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE AFFIXED MY SIGNATURE HERETO, AT ________________, NEBRASKA,
THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2026.

_______________________________
DELORES A. KEASCHALL, TRUSTEE
DELORES A. KEASCHALL TRUST

ON THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 2026, BEFORE ME, A NOTARY
PUBLIC WITHIN AND FOR SAID COUNTY, PERSONALLY APPEARED
DELORES A. KEASCHALL, TRUSTEE, TO BE PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE
THE IDENTICAL PERSON WHOSE SIGNATURE ARE AFFIXED HERETO AND
ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION THEREOF TO BE THEIR VOLUNTARY
ACT AND DEED. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SUBSCRIBED
MY NAME AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL AT ________________ ,
NEBRASKA, ON THE DATE LAST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES ___________

_____________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC (SEAL)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

DEDICATION OF PLAT

SURVEYED BY: BAB
PROJECT NO.:  025-082 SHEET:  1 OF  1
PROJECT NAME: KEASCHALL SUBDIVISION 16-11-14

DATE:  1-2-2026

S1/4 COR
16-11-14

E1/4 COR
16-11-14

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO COUNTY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA, IN REGULAR SESSION
WITH QUORUM PRESENT, THAT THE PLAT OF “KEASCHALL ADMINISTRATIVE
SUBDIVISION” , AN ADMINISTRATIVE SUBDIVISION BEING LOCATED IN THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4 SE1/4) OF
SECTION 16 TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, OF THE 6TH P.M.,
BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA DULY MADE OUT, ACKNOWLEDGED AND
CERTIFIED IS HEREBY APPROVED, ACCEPTED, RATIFIED, AND AUTHORIZED TO
BE FILED AND RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS,
BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA.

MOVED BY:_______________________, AND SECONDED BY ________________
THAT THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION BE ADOPTED. SAID MOTION CARRIED ON
_____ VOTE. (_______ ABSENT)

I HEATHER A. CHRISTENSEN, COUNTY CLERK IN AND FOR BUFFALO COUNTY,
NEBRASKA, BEING DULY QUALIFIED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE IS
A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE RESOLUTION AS PASSED BY THE
BUFFALO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON THE _____ DAY OF
____________________, 2026.

________________________
HEATHER A. CHRISTENSEN, COUNTY CLERK

     (SEAL)

RESOLUTION -2026-                               

SE COR
16-11-14
P.O.B.



Keaschall Admin Sub. - Remnancy Created by: null



LIMITED TITLE REPORT

FILE NO: NTK0013362

  TO: Brown Surveying Services
Bryan Brown

Nebraska Title Company, authorized to engage in the business of abstracting in the State
of Nebraska under Certificate of Authority No. 56, hereby certifies that the records of
Buffalo County, Nebraska have been carefully examined with reference to the following
described property, and from such examination finds as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

The Southeast Quarter of Section 16, Township 11 North, Range 14 West of the 6th
P.M., Buffalo County, Nebraska, EXCEPT a tract of land being part of the Northeast
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 16, more particularly described as
follows: Referring to the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section
16; thence Southerly on the East line of said Southeast Quarter a distance of 30.0
feet to the ACTUAL PLACE OF BEGINNING; thence continuing Southerly on the
aforesaid described course a distance of 234.0 feet; thence Westerly at right angles
a distance of 293.0 feet; thence Northerly at right angles and parallel to the East line
of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 234.0 feet; thence Easterly at right angles a
distance of 293.0 feet to the place of beginning.

Address:  25120 Maple Road, Ravenna, NE 68869

GRANTEE IN LAST DEED OF RECORD:

Delores A. Keaschall, Trustee

UNRELEASED LIENS OF RECORD:

None of Record

JUDGMENTS OR TRANSCRIPTS OF JUDGMENTS:

None of Record

TAXES/ASSESSMENTS:

2024 and all prior years - paid in full
2025 in the amount of $10,526.42 - not paid.
First half becomes delinquent May 1, 2026;
Second half becomes delinquent September 1, 2026.
Parcel ID No.: 280123000
Assessed Value: $1,352,145.00

Special assessments not yet certified to the Office of the County Treasurer.a.
(Note:  No special assessments are shown in the Office of the County
Treasurer at date hereof.)

https://archive.nebtitleco.com/ntcarchive/Download.aspx?ID=bc9e5556-7f4d-4271-b7e7-2d7c3edf49cc
https://archive.nebtitleco.com/ntcarchive/Download.aspx?ID=2351eac6-b55d-40fb-95cd-82730f2f1c14


EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD:

Right of Way Grant to Kansas-Nebraska Natural Gas Company, Inc., recordeda.
January 24, 1967 in Misc. Book 48, Page 31; General Conveyance,
Assignment, and Bill of Sale to Source Gas Distribution LLC, recorded April 16,
2007 as Inst. No. 2007-2577; records of Buffalo County, Nebraska.

Effective Date: December 3, 2025 at 8:00 am

Nebraska Title Company

Please direct inquiries to: Kaitlin Greene

NOTE: THIS IS AN INFORMATIONAL TITLE REPORT

This report is not a guarantee or warranty of title, nor is it an abstract of title, nor is
this a commitment to provide, nor does it provide title insurance.  Liability hereunder
is expressly limited to the sum of $1,000.00.

By 
Registered Abstracter

https://archive.nebtitleco.com/ntcarchive/Download.aspx?ID=8fa1b7c2-1087-412a-a5a2-37bc8428ba94
https://archive.nebtitleco.com/ntcarchive/Download.aspx?ID=31afcc76-f2f2-499d-9c09-14e203b0526f


Keaschall Admin Sub. - Zoning/Floodplain Created by: null



Keaschall Admin Sub. - Aerial/Floodplain Created by: null



Zoning 
Agenda 

Item #2 



Proposed Code Amendment Regarding Personal Use Solar Energy Systems in 
the Agricultural – Residential 2 (AGR – 2) District 

 
Add the following permitted principle use/structure to Buffalo County Zoning Regulations, 
Section 5.42, with renumbering necessary: 
 

• Personal Use Solar Energy System, when the system is situated on a lot comprised of 
10.00 acres or greater; 

 

 

 




































































































































































































	1. Dec 23, 2025 minutes BoC Minutes
	2. December 26, 2025 Payroll
	2. January 9, 2026 Payroll
	3. Early Claim Fuels Tax
	4. December District Court Clerk report
	5. December Treasurer Fund Balance
	7. Res  Big 5 Inter Governmental Legislature
	BoC Zoning Packet 1.13.2026
	BOE   Tax List Correction Jan 2026
	BOE V1 Crane Rivers
	BOE V2 First Lutheran Church
	BOE V3 First United Methodist
	BOE V4 Good Samaritan Hospital
	BOE V5 Goodwill Industries
	BOE V6 The Salvation Army
	BOE V7 Mount Carmel Home Keens Memorial
	BOE V8 Vetter Kearney LLC
	BOE V9 VSL Vetter Home Health Care of Central Nebraska



